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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mankind Agritech Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mankind Agritech Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibilities of Management for The Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.




* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, andto communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year.




h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given (o us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024 - refer note 28(i) to the financial statements.

i) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 35 to the financial statements.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company, or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (1v) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, as described in note 38 to the financial statements, audit
trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights and also
for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access right. Further, in respect of
software used in maintaining payroll records, in absence of service organisation controls
report, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the underlying database
was enabled and operated throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of
accounting software except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are
unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.




As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICATI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N

le

per Mohjt Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDFZQ7579

New Delhi
May 14, 2024




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Mankind Agritech
Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Further, the

Company does not hold any intangible assets.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,

(ii)

(iv)

the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the
year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns and other stipulated financial
information filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books
of account of the Company for the first three quarters and with the audited books of account in
respect of fourth quarter ending 31st March 2024 and there are no material discrepancies.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee
or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as
specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any




fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N
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per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDFZQ7579

New Delhi
May 14, 2024



Mankind Agritech Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

. As at As at
pardauars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Restated*
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 471.50 53.36
Capital work-in-progress 3 878.37 -
Right-of-use assets 4 122.84 -
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 5 7.50 5.85
Income tax assets (net) 6 0.25 0.29
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 203.63 9.87
Other non-current assets 8 24.42 -
Total non-current assets 1,708.51 69.37
Current assets
Inventories 9 5,338.39 1,601.41
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 7,076.70 955.19
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 11 442.03 1,008.38
(iil) Other financial assets 5 36.69 4.31
Other current assets 8 988.78 360.86
Total current assets 13,882.59 3,930.15
Total assets 15,591.10 3,999.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 10,500.00 3,450.00
Other equity 13 (2,317.45) (1,864.15)
Total equity 8,182.55 1,5685.85
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 14 42.58 11.53
Total non-current liabilities 42.58 11.53
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowinas 15 2,460.17 =
(ii} Trade payables 16
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 204.37 266.40
small enterprises
(b) total outstanding duss of creditors other than 2,890.29 1,469.37
micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,040.84 455,76
Provisions 14 229.69 28.78
Other current liabilities 18 540.61 181.83
Total current liabilities 7,365.97 2,402.14
Total liabilities 7,408.55 2,413.67
Total equity and liabilities 15,591.10 3,999.52

* Please refer Note No. 37 reaarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanyvina notes

As per our report of even date

For Bhaai Bhardwaij Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Reaistration Number : 007895N

<2

Per Mohit\Gupta
Partner
Membership Number : 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mankind Agritech Private Limited

ol I,

Abhay Kumar Srivastava

Director
DIN - 08040683

YR

Prashant Ag

al

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 14, 2024

LU

Akhlas Ahmed
Director
DIN - 0B973480

Shreekrushna Vijay Joshi
Company Secretary
Membership no - A46379



Mankind Agritech Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Bariciiug Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Restated*
1 Income
Revenue from operations 19 19,408.42 1,206.53
Other income 20 40.87 0.22
Total income (I) 19,449.29 1,206.75
II Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 197.97 -
Purchases of stock-in-trade 14,5984.94 2,353.01
Changes in inventories of stock in trade, Work In Progress and Finished Goods 22 (3,685.56) (1,601.41)
Employee benefits expense 23 3,587.63 1,179.08
Finance costs 24 192.31 10.91
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 43.86 11.72
Other expenses 26 4,674.25 1,088.00
Total expenses (IT) 19,995.20 3,041.31
111 Profit/(Loss) before tax (I-II) (545.91) (1,834.56)
IV Tax Expense:
Current tax 27 - -
Deferred tax 27 (190.95) {B.19)
Total tax expense (IV) (180.95) (8.19)
V' Profit/{Loss) for the year (III- IV) (354.96) {1,826.37)
V] Other comprehensive income
Ttem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan (11.15) (6.68)
- Income tax relating to these items 2.81 1.68
Other total comprehensive income for the year (VI) (8.34) {5.00)
Y11 Total comprehensive income/loss for the year (V+VI) (363.30) (1,831.37)
Earnings per equity share of face value of INR 10 each (EPS)
Basic EPS (in INR) (8.87] (70.08})
Diluted EFS (in INR) (8.87) (70.08)

* Please refer Note MNo. 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes

As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration Number : 007895N

2

Per Mohi} Gupta
Partner
Membership Number : 52B337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024

.7/"\

/—’

Prashant al
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024

Abhay Kumar Srivastava
Director
DIN - 08040683

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mankind Agritech Private Limited

\N\URS

Akhlas Ahmed

DIN - 08973480

el §-

Shreekrushna Vijay Joshi
Company Secretary
Membership no - A46379



Mankind Agritech Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

r Restated*
A. Cash flow from Operating activities
Profit/{Loss) before tax (545.91) {1,834.56)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 43.86 11.72
MNet foreign exchange differences 0.01 -
Interest income (0.07) =
Finance costs 152,31 10.91
Trade and other receivable balances written off 1.20 -
Allowance for expected credit loss 169.21 -
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (6,291.93) (859.47)
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (3,736.98) {1,601.41)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial asset (34.01) (10.16)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other asset (627.94) (360.86)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 220.81 33.63
Increase/ (Decrease) in Lrade payable 135725 1,735.77
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liability 349.23 455.76
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liability 358.78 181.83
Cash used in operations (8,544.18) (2,336.84)
Income tax paid (net) 0.04 (0.29)
Net cash outflow used in operating activities (8,544.14) (2,337.13)
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment (net) (1,251.78) (65.08)
Interest received 0.05 -
Met cash inflow from investing activities (1,251.73) (65.08)
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Preference shares 7,050.00 3,050.00
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares - 400.00
Interest paid (190.65) (6.63)
Proceeds from borrowings 2,460,17 50.00
Repayment of borrowings 3 (50.00)
Share issue expense (90.00) (32.78)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 9,229.52 3,410.59
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C) (566.35) 1,008.38
Cash and cash equivelents at the beginning of the year 1,008.38 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 442.03 1,008.38
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (refer note 11)
- On current account 441,94 1,008.38
Cash on hand (refer note 11) 0.09 -
442.03 1,008.28

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as set out in Ind A5-7 "Statement of cash flows”.

= please refer Mote Mo. 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conj

As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration Number : 007895N

e

Per Mohit\Gupta
Partner
Membership Number : 528337

Place: New Delhl
Date: May 14, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mankind Agritech Private Limited

Director
DIN - 08040683

T

Prash arwal
Chief Financial Officer

Flace: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024

Akhlas Ahmed
Director
IN - 08973480

‘\g"\g}z?r

Shreekrushna Vijay Joshi
Company Secretary
Membership no - A46379



Mankind Agritech Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

b.

Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2022 -
Changes in equity share capital during the year 3,450.00
As at March 31, 2023 (Restated*) 3,450.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 7,050.00
As at March 31, 2024 10,500.00
Other equity
Year ended March 31, 2024

Other equity
Particulars Retalned samings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (1,864.15) (1,864.15)
Profit for the year (354.96) (354.96)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax (8.34) (8.34
Total comprehensive income for the year (363.30) (363.30)
Share issue expenses (90.00) (90.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (2,317.45) (2,317.45)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Restated®)
Other equity
Particulars f = Total
Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 April 2022 - =
Profit for the year (1,826.37) (1,826.37)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (5.00) (5.00)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,831.37) (1,831.37)
Share issue expenses (32.78) (32.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 o o (1,864.15) (1,864.15)

* Please refer Note No. 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes

As par our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaij Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm's Registration Number : 007B95N

3

Per Mohit Gupta
Partner
Membership Number : 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mankind Agritech Private Limited

Abhay Kumar Srivastava

Director
DIN - 08040683

Chief Finandial Officer

ARG

Akhlas Ahmed
Director
DIN - 08973480

i
) 51 ‘
Shreekrushna Vijay Joshi

Company Secretary
Mermbership no - A46379

Place; New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024



Mankind Agritech Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5,

Corporate information

Mankind Agritech Private Limited (“the Company”) (earlier known as Appian Agritech Private Limited) is a private limited company domiciled in India and has its registered office at 208, Gkhla
Industrial Estate Phase 111, Delhi. The Company was Incorporated on April 06, 2022 and it is a subsidiary of Mankind Pharma Limited, a public limited company domiciled in India. The Company is
principally engaged in the trading of Agriculture products in India,

Material accounting policies
This note provides 2 list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) financial statemants, These palicies have been consistently
applied to all the years.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosure reguirements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111} as amended.
These standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated, The Company has prepared the financial
statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concemn.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excapt for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

I} Certain financial assets and liabilities that Is measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
ii} Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell
iii) Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset s treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
» All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

> It is expected to be settied In normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpese of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilitles are classified as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as Its aperating cycle,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company.

New and ds by the Company

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April D1, 2023.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8:
The amendments clarify the distinction betwean changes in accounting estimates and changes In accounting policies and the correction of errars. It has also been clarified how entities use

measurement technigues and inputs te develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's standalone financlal statemeants.

{ii} Disclosure of Accounting Policies- Amendments to Ind AS 1:

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their 'malerial’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting pelicies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presantation of any items in the Company’s financial
statements.

(iii} Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Revenue is reduced for rebates, trade discounts and other simllar allowances.

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with custamers, Under Ind AS
115, revenue is recognised at an amount that refiects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,
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2.6.

2.8.

2.9.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of geods are recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, where recovery of the consideration is probable, the assoclated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably and thera is no continulng management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured relizbly. The transfer of significant risks
and rewards of ownership generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers,

Other Operating Revenues

{2} Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, Lo the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary, Cost of inventories Includes 2l costs and
owverheads in bringing the Inventories to their present condition, Cost is arrived at moving weighted average basis. Work-in-process and finished geods include appropriate proportion of overheads

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for Inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make sale,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 "Statement of Cash Flows", whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past er future cash receipts ar payments. The cash flows fram eperating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes In value.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and eguipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated Impairment losses,

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to
working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the Initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring the site an which it is located, wherever
applicable. Items such as spares are capitalized when they meet the definition of property, plant and eqguipmeant.

If significant pam?: of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next
overhaul expenditure.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and squipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits fram the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged o the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred,

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and eguipment, and are
recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss,

Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalised until the period of commissioning has
been completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, as per useful life preseribed in Schedule 11 to
the Act. Management’s assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of
the assets, past history of replacement and malntenance support. The depraciation method, asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period prospectively.

Depraciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Additions on account of insurance spares, additions/extensions forming an integral part of existing plants and the revised carrying amount of the assets identified as impaired, are depreciated over
residual life of the respective asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of
profit and loss,
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13,

2.14,

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residuz! values are reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible assets te determing whether there is any indication based on internal/ external
factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assats are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

I the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amaount. An impairment loss Is recog d immedi in t of profit and loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amaount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Items inciuded In the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which Is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies
and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in statement of profit and loss except any exchange differences on menetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of
designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, emplovee state insurance scheme,

niriby i |
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution
required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

hort- employea banefi

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services renderad by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service,

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That Is, If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarlly comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and |eases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease lisbilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The company has entered into lease agreement for bulliding which has been assessed as operating lease and accordingly the company has recognised rental expenses on a straight line basis over the
tenure of lease.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assats includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right- of-use assels are depreciated on & straight-line basis
over the unexpired period of respective leases ranging from 33-99 years.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation Is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policles in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets',

i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Campany applies the short-term lease recognition exemption Lo its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease tarm of 12 manths or less from the commencemant date and de not
contzin a purchase option). It alse applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the nat profit per share from continuing ordinary operations, Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the peried, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.




Mankind Agritech Private Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.15.

2.17.

2.18.

Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It Is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items recegnised directly in equity or in Cther
Comprehensive Income.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the statement af profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible, The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
i} has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts: and
il}) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneausly.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is pravided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible ternporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reparting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the ligbility is settled, based on tax rates (2nd tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation autherity.

Deferred tax assets on unsued tax losses are recognised only Lo the extent of net Deferred tax Liabilitles,

Currant an for the

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other compr ive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprenhensive income or directly in equity respectively.

. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some ar all of a provision te be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as 2 separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Sales Return

Provisions for sales returns is determined based on the historical percentage of szles return for the same types of goods for which the provision is currently being determined. The same percentage to
the sales is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for sales return to be accrued. It is very unlikely that actual sales return will exactly match the historical percentage, so
such estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurence.

Contingent liabilities

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lizbility. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyand the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based an all
available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not
reflected as liabilities in the financlal statements, Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such
contingencies will have a material affect on Its financial position or profitability,

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclesed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is prababie,

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount rec ble can be m reliably and It |s reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and financial labllities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other
than financial assets and financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair vaiue of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace,

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditi are sub ly measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investrments that are designated as at fair value through profit
or lass on initial recognition):
* the asset is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to callect contractual cash flows; and
* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financlal assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interast method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of gllocating interest income over the relevant peried, The effective interest rate is the rate that

exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts (including all fees and points paid ar received that form an integral part of the effective interest rale, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) threugh the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amaunt on initlal recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest Income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevecably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

A financial asset may be designated as at FYTPL upen initia| recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reparting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of profit and loss is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recegnition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recoanition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrurment at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

e at an amount equal to lifetime expectad

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the Company m the loss
credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financlal Instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrurnent as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantizlly all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retsined interest in the asset and an assoclated llability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial assal.

On derecognition of 3 financial asset In its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise bean recognized in profit or loss on disposal of
that financial asset.

On derecognition of 2 financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial assel between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other compr ive income is recogni In profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss
on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensiva income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by @ Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a resldual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its lisbilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments,

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL, However, financial llabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not

qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at
below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set aut below.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or It is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
* It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the nsar term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of shart-term profit-taking; or
= it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held far trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if;

» such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or recognition inconsistency that would atherwlse arise; or

* the financial liability forms part of a3 Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managad and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, In accordance with the
Company's docu | risk it or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided intarnally on that basis; or

« It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FYTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial lizbilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net oaln or loss recognised in statement of
profit and Ioss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is Included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item,

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change In the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive Income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes In the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accaunting mismatch in statement of profit and loss. The remalning amount of change in the fair value of fiability is recognised In statement of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liabllity’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are net subsaquently reclassified to statement of profit and loss,

Gains or losses on financlal guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Fii liabilities sul itly ed at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting perlods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently maasurad at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in
the 'finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a methed of calculating the amortised cost of a financial llability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or {(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabllitles that are denominated In a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based
on the amertised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the 'other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated In a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities
that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange cornponent forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration pald and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

. Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization In cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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2.20. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expanses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial statements Including the recoverability of carrying
amounts of financial and non financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company
has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related Information and economic forecasts and expects that
the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered,

Critical estimates and jud, in applying accounting policies

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the process pf applying the Company Accounting Pelicies and that have mast significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Provisions and contingencies

The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital prajects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and
other claims against the Company. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and
circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are trested as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as
liabilities in the financial statements. Although there can be ne assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company invalved, it Is not expecled that such
contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measurad at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet in
respect of which quoted price in active markets are available are measured using valuation techniques. The Inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment Is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial Instruments.

Impairment of assets

In assessing the property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Company's business
plans and changes In regulatory environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets of 8 cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets,
that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, econemic and
regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors, Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes In the abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the
assets,

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic lives, Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once & year and any
changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The Company also reviews Its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there are
events or changes In circumstances that indicate that carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for Impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits such as changes in commedity prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken inte consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit {CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commaodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to cash fiow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets,

Conting jes and ¢ + te

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A tax provision is recognised when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obiigation.

Where it is management's assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably gquantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is
remote. Such liabilities are disclesed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

When considering the classification of 2 legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is judgement involved. This pertains to the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is
based upon management’s interpretation of country specific tax law, in particular India, and the likelihood of it M 1ent uses in-house and external legal professionals to inform their
decision.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position
or profitability. The liabilities which are assessed as possible and hence are not recognised in these financial statements.

Measurement of defined benefit obligation:

The cbligation anising from the defiend benefit plan is detremined on the basis of actuarial assurnptions. Key actuarial assumptions inciude discount rate, trends in salary escalation and vested future
benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying
bonds correspond to probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.
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2.21 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a)

(b}

(c)

Taxes

Uncerlainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide renge of business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing Interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the respansible tax suthority, Such
differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual iImpairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is datermined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Whare the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverabie amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken Into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation medel is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators,
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All amounts are In INR |aes unless otharwise stated

3  Property, plant and equipment

Carrying amounts of:
Frezhold land

Leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Office equipment
Computers

Capital work in progress

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 01 April 2022
Additions

Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Additions
Dispesals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April 2022
Depreciation expense (refer note 25)
Disposals/ adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense {refer note 25)
Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Net carrying value as at March 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
33473 =
6.13 -
40.67 =
4.60 =
14.87 =
45.88 30.73
24,62 22,63
471,50 53.36
B78.37
Disclosures regarding gross block of Property, plant & equipment, accumulated depreciation therean and net block are as given below:
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Furniture and Office Capital Work in
land p r fixtures Vehicles ahilpmenE Computars Total Prograss
= - E - 40.48 24,60 65.08 =
= = = = = 40.48 24.60 65.08 =
334.73 6.16 42,73 4.84 15.65 44.00 11.19 450930 878.37
334.73 6.16 42,73 4.84 15.65 B84.48 35.79 524.38 B78.37
= - - 9.75 1.97 11.72 -
= L ol = - 8.75 1.97 11.72 =
0.03 2.06 0.24 o.78 28.85 9.20 41.17 o
= 0.03 2.06 0.24 0.78 3B.60 11.17 52.89 =
= = e = - 30.73 22.63 53.36 -
334.73 6.13 40.67 4.60 14.87 45.88 24.62 471.50 878,37

Net carrying value as at March 31, 2024

Note :

1. Disclosure of capital commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment has been provided In note no, 28{0).
2. The Company undisputedly possesses the title deeds for all immovahble properties held by the Company, presented under "Freehold land',

3.1 As at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Less Total
Lhan) 1-2 years 2-3 years ""'e‘:“_’" 3 o
Profects in pragress 878.37 - 878.37
Total B78.37 - = = E7B.37
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Total
" Lesa than 3 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
AL YS3rs

Projects in progress

Total

Note :

1. Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2024 Incledes assets under construction at plant, and production lines which are pending installation. There are no projects which have either exceeds their budget or whose

timelines have been deferred.
2. Disclosure of contractual ©

for the acquisiti

of property, plant and equipment has been provided in note 28,
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All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

4 Right-of-use assets

Carrying amounts of:
Leasehold land
Leasehold Building

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 01 April 2022
Additions

Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Additions
Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April 2022

Depreciation expense (refer note 25)

Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense (refer note 25)

Disposals/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Net carrying value as at March 31, 2023
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2024

Note :

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

4261 -

80.23 =

122.84 -

Leasehold Leasehold Total
land Building

43.04 82.49 125.53
43.04 82.49 125.53
0.43 2.26 2.69
0.43 2.26 2.69
42.61 80.23 122.84

This note provide information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has taken factory premises for it's repackaging activities on long term for a

period of 58 years from the government authorities of Himachal Pradesh.
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5 Other financial assets (carried at amortised cost)
Non-Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits (refer note a. below) 7.50 5.85
7.50 5.85
Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits 36.69 4.31
36.69 4.31

Note :
a. Security deposits includes interest accrued due amounting to INR 0.02 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024,

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

6 Income tax assets

Income tax receivable (net of provisions for income tax) 0.25 0.29

0.25 0.29
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 Deferred tax balances
Deferred tax assets 203.63 9.87
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 203.63 9.87
Year ended March 31, 2024 Opening Recognised/ Recognised in ather ) ;
Balance ragarssyl i comprehensive Income Elasing halance
Profit or loss
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 5.69 31.81 2.81 40.31
Property, plant and equipment 0.95 1.84 - 2.79
Allowance for expected credit loss = 42.59 o 42.59
Provision for expected sales return 3.23 23.76 - 26.99
Provision for Inventory = 60.35 o 60.35
Bonus payable - 4.44 . 4.44
Others + 26.16 = 26.16
9.87 190.95 2.81 203.63
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 9.87 190.95 2.81 203.63
Year ended March 31, 2023
! Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive Income g
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits - 4.01 1.68 5.69
Property, plant and equipment - 0.95 - 0.95
Provision for expected sales return - 3.23 - 3.23
- 8.19 1.68 9.87
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) e 8.19 1.68 9.87

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
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All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

8 Other assets

Non-Current
(unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances

Current

{unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses

Advances to vendors

Advances to employees

Balances with Government authaorities

9 Inventories

Raw materials

In hand
Finished goods

In hand

In transit
Stock in trade

In hand

In transit
Stores and spares

Note:

a. Mode of valuation of inventory has been stated in note 2.6.

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

24.42 A

24.42 -
16.28 37.61
326.29 17.82
1.90 0.04
644.31 305.39
988.78 360.86

———————

As at
March 31, 2024

46.97

89.93
0.15

4,896.18
300.71
4.45

As at

__March 31, 2023

1,559.76
41.65

5,338.39

1,601.41

b. Inventory write downs are recognised, considering the nature of inventory, estimated sheif life, ageing of inventory and actual scrapping of inventory as well as
provisioning policy of the Company. Write downs of inventories amounted to INR 88.59 lacs (March 31, 2023: Nil). These written down were included in the cost
of raw material and components consumed and changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade.
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All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

10 Trade receivables

Unsecured

Considered good

Considered credit impaired

Considered good - Related Parties {refer note 33)

Less: Allowance against expected credit loss

o

Information,

€. Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7.067.67 950.33
169.21 -
9.03 4.86
7,245.91 955.19
{169.21) -
7,076.70 955,19

The average credit period to domestic customers ranges upto 90 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables upto the due date from the date of the invoice.
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade recelvables based on historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward locking

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars C‘::“dtul?t Lessthan6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Months =1 year ¥ Y ¥
Undisp d Trade Receivables - considered good 3,579.89 3,411.38 85.43 - - 7,076.70
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - - - - -
Increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable = credit impaired = # 85.43 0.05 % - 85.48
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good “ ¥ - ] - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired = 51.65 32,08 = = - B83.73
_Total 3,579.89 3,463.03 202.94 0.05 - = 7,245.91
As at 31 March 2023
Out ding for g periods from due date of payment
Curent but
Particulars Less than 6 & months Total
t due - -
not du Monthe =i year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 914.14 41.05 - -} = - 955.19
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - - =
increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired = = = < = = -
Total 914.14 41.05 = = = - 955.19
As at As at
d. Movement in allowance for expected credit loss: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the perlod - -
Provision for expected credit losses recoanised during the vear (refer note 26) 169.21 =
Balance at the end of the period 169.21 =
11 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks
- On current account 441.%4 1,008.38
0.09 <

Cash on hand

Note:

a. There are no restrictions with reqard to cash and cash eauivalents at the end of the reporting period.

442.03 1,008.38
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e in INR 1 1 I

12 Share capital

Authorised
40,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each
(March 31, 2023: 40,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

13,10,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each
(March 31, 2023: 3,10,00,000 preference shares of INR 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
40,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
(March 31, 2023: 40,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

10,10,00,000 0.01% optionally convertible non cumulative reedemable preference
shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
(March 31, 2023 : 3,05,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

{vi)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Restated*
400.00 400.00
13,100.00 3,100.00
13,500.00 3,500.00
400.00 400.00
10,100.00 3,050.00
10,500.00 3,450.00

The Company has only cne class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liguidation
of the Company, holder of eguity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference Shares

The OCPS shall carry a dividend @ 0.01% which shall be non cumulative. The OCPS may be reedemable either in full or partially in one or more trenches, during the tenure of
OCPS at the option of the company subject to avallability of adequate prefits in compliance with the provision of the Act. The tenure of OCPS shall be upto September 30, 2042, If
OCPS are converted, 1 OCPS of INR. 10/- each will be converted into 1 Equity share of INR, 10/- each, If OCPS is redeemed In cash, the reedemption will be made at fair value of
share of the comapnay on the date of redemption ar at issue price |.e., INR 10/- whichever is higher. The OCPS will carry preferential rights vis-a-vis equity shares of the company

w.r.t payment of dividend and repayment of capital during winding up.

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear:

Issued equity capital

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 40,00,000 400.00 = =
Add : Issued during the vear - = 40,00.000 400.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 40,00,000 400.00 40,00,000 400.00
Details of shares held by the holding company
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Mankind Pharma Limited (along with nominee shareholder)
- Equity shares 40,00,000 400 40,00,000 400
Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers % holding Numbers % holding
Equity shares
Mankind Pharma Limited (along with nominee shareholder) 40,00,000 100.00% 40,00,000 100.00%
40,00,000 100.00% 40,00,000 100.00%
Shares held by each promoter [as per section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013]:
Disclosure of shar Iding of pr ter's as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
No. of Shares % of total change during the % change during
S:No. _PromgteeMame held shares period the period
1 Mankind Pharma Limited 40,00,000 100% - 0.00%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoter's as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
No. of Shares % of total change during the % change during
S.No. Promoter Name held shar viad the period
1 Mankind Pharma Limited 40,00,000 100% - 0.00%

* Please refer Note No. 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8
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13 Other equity

Retained earnings (refer note 13.1)

13.1 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Share issue expenses

Balance at the end of the year

* Please refer Note No. 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Restated*
(2,317.45) (1,864.15)
(2,317.45) (1,864.15)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Restated*
(1,864.15) =
(354.96) (1,826.37)
(8.34) (5.00)
(90.00) (32.78)
[géi?.as) (1,864.15)
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
14 Provisions
Non-current

Provision for emplovee benefits

Provision for gratuity (net) 42.58 11.53
42.58 11,53
Current T ———
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 122.44 15.93
Other provisions
Provision for expected sales return (refer note (a) below) 107.25 12.85
229.65 28.78
Note:
(a) Provision for expected sales return:
As per best estimate of the management, provision has been made towards probable return of goods from customers and the movement in provision for sales return Is as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 12.85 %
Addition during the vear 94.40 12.85
Utilised during the year = =
Balance as at the end of the year 107.25 12.85
Provision for expected sales return: A provision Is recognized for expected sales return on products sold by the Company during the past year, based on the past experiences of
level of return, It is expected that significant level of returns will be Incurred in next financial year. Assumptions used to calculate said provision are based on current sales level and
current information available about sales return.
a As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15 Borrowinas

Current
(Secured, at amortised cost)

Cash credit facllity from bank 2.460.17

—_— 246017

Note:

a) Cash credit facility from bank secured by hypothecation of current assets, book debts, Stock and corporate quarantee glven by the holding company, It carries interest rate of 9%

p.a. (This rate can be modified on the basis of T-Bill rate applicable on loan booking date).

b) Movement of borrowing during the year is as follows:

Particulars Current Borrowings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balances - >
Interest expense 128.82 =
Cash Inflows 2.460.17 -
Interest paid (128.82) -
Closing balances 2,460.17 =
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As at As at
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16 Trade payables
Current
i total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note d below) 20437 266.40
ii.  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,890.29 1,469.37
3,094.66 1,735.77
16.1 Trade Payable aeging schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars nbill Not d Less Total
Unbilled:dua ue v;::m 2 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and " 98.79 105.58 = . = 20437
small enterprises 4 ! '
Total outstarlc_lmg dues of creditors t_)ﬂ'lerthan 50.88 2,047.85 750.26 138 3 B 2,880.37
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - ~ . N _ gy %
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro " . g.92 . = - 9.92
enterprises and small enterprises ? :
Total B80.88 2,1465.64 865.76 1.38 = - 3,094.66
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul, d d
iculars Unbilled due Not due Lns::::n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and - 266.40 - - = B
small enterprises 266.40
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 97.89 1.083.26 288.22 - = = 1,469.37
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small E = - - - =
enterprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro & = = - = =
enterprises and small enterprises s
Total 97.89 1,349.66 288.22 - - - 1,735.77

Note:
a. The average credit period on purchases is upto 80 days for the Company. Tha Company however ensures that all payables are paid within the pre agreed credit limits,
b. Trade Payables include due to refated parties INR 61.83 lacs, as at March 31, 2024. (19.75 lacs. as at March 31, 2023).
€. The amounts are unsecured and non-interast bearing.
d. The Company has certain dues lo suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are
as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting
period
Principal 202.88 266.40
Interest 1.49
(b} Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and the
amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appoi day + -
(c) interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment other than the interest specified under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 = -
(d) Interast accrued and remaining unpaid 1.49
(&) further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. = -
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been Identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon
by the auditors.
17 Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Capital creditors (see note a below) 235.85 -
Trade/ security deposits from vendors and others 804,99 45576
1,040.84 455.76
——

Note:

a. Capital creditors includes amount due from related party ameunting to INR 2.95 lacs as at March 31, 2024.
As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

18 Other liabilities
Current
Contract liabilities 403.82 132.50
Statutory liabilities 135.37 459.33
Others 1.35 =
540.61 181.83
AN A
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19
19.1
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
20

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Sale of products 19,408.42 1,206.53
19,408.42 1,206.53

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Segment

Particular Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

(i) Type of goods & service

March 31, 2023

Agricultural products 19,408.42 1,206.53
Total revenue from contracts with customers 19,408.42 1,206.53
(ii) Geographical information
Within India 19,071.00 1,190.38
Outside India 337.42 16.15
Total revenue from contracts with customers 19,408.42 1,206.53
(iii) Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point of time 19,408.42 1,206.53
Total revenue from contracts with customers 19,408.42 1,206.53
Contract balances
Trade receivables (refer note 10) 7,076.70 955.19
Contract liabilities (refer note 18) 403.89 132.50
Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls in the range upto 90 days.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer,
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 21,363.47 1,301.70
Adjustments:
Sales return Provision (94.40) (12.85)
Discount (1,860.17) (82.32)
Scheme Cost (0.48) =
Revenue from contracts with customers 19,408.42 1,206.53

Performance obligations

Sale of goods: Performance obligation is satisfied when control of goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. If in case there

is any deviation then product supplied will get replaced with new product.

Total Revenue from operations 19,408.42 1!206.53
Year ended Year ended

Other income

Interest income
Interest income earned on:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

- financial assets (at amortised cost) 0.06 -
Interest received on income tax refund 0.01 -
0.07 -
Others
Insurance claim received 1.60 0.22
Others 39.20 =
40.80 0.22
40.87 0.22
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21 Cost of Material Consumed
Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year

b Cost of traded goods sold

Purchases

22 Changes in inventories of stock in trade & finished goods

Opening Stock:
Stock in trade

a. In hand

b. In transit

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
a. In hand

b. In transit

Stock in trade
a. In hand
b. In transit

Net decrease/(increase)

23 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Staff welfare expenses

24 Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowings at amortised cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest on delay deposit of income tax

Other interest expense

25 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 4)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

244.74 -
244.74 -
(46.97) -
197.77 -
14,984.94 2,353.01
14,984.94 2,353.01
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,559.76 -
41.65 -
1,601.41 -
89.93
0.15
4,806,18 1,559.76
300.71 41.65
5,286.97 1,601.41
(3,685.56) (1[601.41l

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

3,422.87 1,129.02
151.00 48.59
10.87 -
2.89 1.47
3,587.63 1,179.08
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

128.82 0.21
42.17 6.42
0.02 -
21.30 4.28
192.31 10.91

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

41.17 11.72
2.69 -
43.86 11.72
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Note:

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repair and maintenance

- Machinery

- Building

- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Postage and courier
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight cartage and other distribution cost
Commission and brokerage
Donation and contributions
Legal and professional charges
Payments to auditors (refer note below)
Training and recruitment expenses
Advertising and sales promotion expenses
Security expenses
Testing and inspection charges
Bank charges
Trade and other receivables written off
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation

Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables

Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Payments to auditors (excluding input tax)

a) Audit fees
b) Tax audit fees

Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

1.41 -
0.99 .
210.86 52.98
0.29 "
9.38 -

20.10 46.57
20.83 237
44.54 8.08
16.51 8.32
5.43 1.57
1,032.94 540.97
8.39 3.42
728.14 65.57
206.58 71.26
- 0.12
198.98 54.11
2.75 0.50
69.70 7.99
1,903.47 209.35
2.87 .
3.32 0.09
6.62 3.66
1.20 -
0.01 .
169.21 .
9.73 11.07
4,674.25 1,088.00
2.50 0.50
0.25 -
2.75 0.50
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Year ended
March 31, 2024

27 Income taxes
27.1 Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current tax

In respect of the current year
In respect of the previous period =

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year (190.95) (8.19)
In respect of the previous period = =
(190.95) (8.19)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (190.95) (8.19)
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax (545.91) (1,834.56)
Statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate (137.39) (461.72)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 0.65 2.54
Unadjusted tax losses on which no deferred tax has been created 450.99
Brought forward unused tax losses on which no deferred tax was created (54.21) -
At the effective income tax rate of Nil (190.95) (8.19)
27.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 2.81 1.68
Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income 2,81 1.68
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28 Conti iabilities and i (to the extent not provided for)

(I} Contingent liabilities

The company does not foresee any liability arising in future on account of any litigation/event not accounted for.
(i)l Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for are INR 175.49 lacs for the period ending March 31, 2024, exciuding capital advances fully provided (refer note no. &)

{lii} Undrawn committed borrowing facility

The Company has availed cash credit facility from bank ameunting ko INR 5,000 lacs secured by hypothecation of current assets, book debts and stock. An amount of INR 2,532.83 lacs remains undrawn as at year end.

{iv) The Company does not have any Jong-term contracts including derlvative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses,

29 Employee Benefits
The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held {where funded) in separately administered Funds.

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the statement of profit or |0ss is the tetal of contributions payable in the year,

a. Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme to a defined contribution refirement benefit

plan for qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employees Provident

Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme is deposited with the Reglonal Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit

scheme to fund the benefits.

During the year, the Company has recognised INR 92.40 lacs for Employer's contributions to the Provident Fund and INR 61.64 lacs for Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions in the

contribution payable to the plan by the Company Is at the rate specified In rules to the scheme.

Defined benefit plan = Gratuity plan

The Company’s contribution tewards its gratuity liability Is 3 defined benefit retirement plan,

The company will provide for the gratulty benefits to ts employees on completion of statutory eligibility time period of 4 years 240 days. Therefore, no provisions has been created during the year,

Statement of Profit and Loss. The

The gratulty liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee, The aforesaid liability is caleulated on the basis of fifteen days salary (1. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service

subject to completion of five years service,

i. Risks lated with Plan

Risks assoclated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks, These risks are:- (1) interest risk {discount rate risk}, (i) mortality risk and (i} salary risk.

Interest risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. For this report we have used Indian
Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table,
A change in martality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability |5 calculated with the assumption of salary Increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of

salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of abligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acturial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined ben
and the related current service cost and past service cost, wera measured using the projectad unit credit method.

ii. Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuanal assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

efit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2024, The present value of defined benefit obligation,

5. Particulars Refer note As at As at
Mo, below March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i, Discount rate {p.a.) 1 6.95% TA15%
il. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) -Office Staff 3 8.00% 8.00%
Salary escalation rate {p.a.) -Fleld Staff 3 6.00% 5.00%
Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.
2 The expected return |s based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the d term of the obligati
3 The estimates of future salary increases consldered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
iii. Demographic assumptions:
50 Years BD Years

1 Retirement age

2 Mortality rate 100% of TALM (2012-14)

ti 6.68
21
Sarvice up to 5 vear:
Field Staff - 21%,
Office Staff - 22%,
Service above 5 years:
Field Staff - 8%,
Office Staff - 6%

3 Average O service of Employee upto
4 No of Employess

5 Attrition rate

NEWDELHl |21

100% of IALM {2012-14)

5.84
177
Service up to 5 year:

Field Staff - 21%,
Office Staff - 22%,
Service above 5 years:
Field Staff - 8%,
Office Staff - 6%
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30

31

32

Segment Reporting

AL Basis for segmentation
The operations of the Company are limited to one segment viz. Agricultural products, which as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments" is considered the only
reportable segment.

B.  Geographic information

The Company operates only in India and does not have any separate identifiable geographic segment.

Ci Major Customer
No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain as a going concern and maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other strategic
Investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company Is equity based and financing threugh short term berrawings. The funding requirements
are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and short term borrowings as per the Company's policy to meet anticipated funding requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objective and policies

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant
accounting policies, including the criterla for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2.

Financial assets and liabilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 7,076.70 7,076.70 7,076.70
Cash and cash equivalents 442.03 442,03 442.03
Cther current financial assets 36.69 36.69 36.69
Other nan current financial assets 7.50 7.50 7.50
Total 7,562.92 7,562.92 7,562,202
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,460.17 2,460.17 2,460.17
Trade payables 3,094.66 3,094.66 3,004.66
Other current financial liabilities 1,040.84 1,040.84 1,040.84
Total 6,595.67 6,595.67 6,595.67

March 31, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Financial assets

Trade receivables 955,19 955.19 955,19
Cash and cash equivalents 1,008.38 1,008.38 1,008.38
Other current financial assets 4.31 4.31 4.31
Other non current financial assets 5.85 5.85 5.85
Total 1,973.73 1,973.73 1,973.73
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,735.77 1,735.77 1,735.77
Other current financial liabilities 455.76 455.76 455.76
Total 2,191.53 2,191.53 2,191.53
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Fair value hierarchy .
The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined below:

e Level 1: quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived

from prices)
e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Risk management framework
Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Liquidity risk;

- Interest rate risk; and

- Credit risk

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

a) Liguidity Risk

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment programme mainly in growth projects. The Company generates
sufficient cash flows from the current operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments provide liquidity bath in the

short-term as well as in the long-term,

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity,

gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our balance sheet. The maturity profile of the

Company's financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect

the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As at March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total

Borrowings 2,460.17 - - - 2,460.17

Trade payables 3,094.66 - = b 3,094.66

Other Current financial liabilities 1,040.84 - 5 = 1,040.84
6,595.67 - = = 6,595.67

As at March 31, 2023

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total

Trade payables 1,735.77 - - * 1,735.77

Other Current financial liabilities 455.76 - = = 455.76
2,191.53 - 5 = 2,191.53

b) Interest rate risk

The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Floating rate financial Fixed rate financial

Non-interest bearing

haat Total liabilities liabilities financial liabilities
Financial liabilities March 31, 2024 6,595.67 = 2,460.17 4,135.50
Financial liabilities March 31, 2023 2,191,53 - - 2,191.53
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33 Related Party Disclosures.

In & with the of Indian

Standard (Ind AS) -

end balances with them.

A List of related parties and relationships

Halding eompany

Fellow

{with whom

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
- Directors

Others

B. Transactions during the yesr

have taken placa)

Mankind Pharma Limited

Copmed Pharmacsuticals Private Limited
Mankind Life sciences Private Limited

Refax Pharmacouticals Pvt. Led,

Abhay Kumar Srivastava
Akhlas Ahmed
Partha Sengupta

Mankind Blosys Private Limited
A5 Fackers
A TO Z Packers

Alankrit Handlcrafts Private Limitad

MN_S.Industrias
Paonta Pracess Equipments

Pathkind Diagnastics Private Limited

24 "Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the relsted party where contral existsfable to exercise sgnificant influence slong with the aggregate transactions | year

Particulars Holding Compan I FEHW Subsidiaries Others Total
Year an ended Year ended Year o Year anded Year ended ‘ear ended
March 31, 2024 Mauh 31 2011 errJi 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 Nald| 31, 2023
a, Purchase of goods
Mankind Pharma Limited 338 - - - R -
A to Z Packers - - - - 14.80 - 14.80 =
A 5 Packers = ¥ - - 6.50 0_9! 6.50 0.9
N S Industries - - - - 0.05 0.05 -
Total 338 - - - 3135 !g! 2473 0.91
b. Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Mankind Pharrma Limited 12.32 12.38 - - - - 121 1238
Menkind Life sciences Privats Limited - - 319.04 = = = 319.04 =
Paanta Process Equipments - - = = 3.26 = 3.25 =
Total 12,33 12.38 310.04 - 3.36 - 334.62 1238
€ Intercst expense®
Mankind Pharma Limied = 0.21 = = : = = 0,21
Taotal - O.l_l_ = - = = ~ 0.21
d. Recelpt of services
Mankind Pharma Limited 12225 - - - . - 122.25 -
Felax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited . - 0.26 - - 026 -
Pathkind Dizgnestics Private Limitad - - - - 0,03 = 0,03 -
Tatal 122,25 - 0.25 - 0,03 = 122,54 =
e Rent Paid
Alankiit Handicrafts Private Limsted - = - - D.22 - 0.22 .
Mankind Pharma Limited 326 - - - - . 3,26 -
Copmad Pharmaceuticals Private Limited = - 2.40 = = 240 1.60
Total 3.26 = 2.40 0,33 = 5.88 160
. Pavment mada on behalf of the company by
Mankind Biasys Frivate Limited - = - - - F1d. - 311
Total - - - - - 3.11 - 311
a. Borrowings taken
Manking Fharma Limitad = 50,00 - = - - - 50.00
- 50.00 - - - - - 50.00
h. Repaymeant of borrowings
Mankind Pharma Limitad = 50.00 - - - - - 50,00
E 50.00 = - = = = 50,00
i Guarantee Commission paid
Mankind Pharma Limited 21.30 428 - - - - 21.30 4.28
21.30 438 - - - - 21.30 4.8
i Financials guarantes taken
Mankind Pharma Limited = 2,500.00 - - - - - 2,500.00
- 2,500,00 - - - - - 2,500.00
k. Issug of equity shares
Mankind Pharma Limited - - - - - 400,00
L. Issue of Optionally convertible prefrence sharos
Mankind Pharma Limited - - - - 7.050.00 3,050.00
= = % = 7,050.00 3,050.00
m. Liability transferred from
Mankind Pharma Limited 5.03 4.86 el = T 3 9,03 4.86
9,03 3. - - - - 5,03 386
n. Liability transforred to
Mankind Pharma Limited 198 - - - - - 1.98 -
1.98 - - - - = 1.98 =
@ Other Finandal assets- Security deposits
Ménkind Pharma Limited 1.08 - - - = £ =
1.08 - - B - = -
*Excludes notional interest expanse on lisbility component of Cptionally Convertible Preference Shares.
C. _Balances ing 35 at the vear and
Particalars Hold Col Fellow Subsidiaries Others Total
Year ended Year ended Vear ended Year ended Yoar ended Vear ended Vear anded Year ended

Other Financial assets- Security deposits
Mankind Pharma Limited
Total

b. Trade pavables
ATO Z Packers
A5.Packers
Pathkind Diaonostics Pet. LTD.
Relax Pharmaceuticals Pve, Ltd.
Mankind Pharma Limited
Total

e Capital creditors
Mankind Life sciences Privste Limited
Tatal

d. Trade receival
Mankind Pharma Umited
Total

e. Financial Guarantee
Mankind Pharma Limited
Total

March 31, 7024 March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

108 = z = z - .08
1.08 = - - - - .08 -
- - = - 4.40 . 40 -
i 3 - - 4,81 - 481 -
- - - - 0,03 - 0.03 -
= - 0.29 - - - 0.28 -
5230 4275 C = = - 5201 1375
e — - N 1 7 1 L - - I - - S8
- - 235 - - - 255 -
% - 2.9% = = = 2.95 -
5.03 4,86 - = N 5,03 4,86
2,03 486 - - - 203 4,86
— 250000 25000 2 = 2 —2:500.00 2.500.00
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34 Earnings per Equity Share

35

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per equity share
has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, There are no dilutive potential equity shares.

Face value per Equity Share

Net Profit after tax as per statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS
Basic Earning Per Share

Net Profit after tax as per statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity, Potential Equity Shares
Weighted Average number of Equity and Potential Equity Shares used as denominater of calculating
Diluted Earning Per Share

Reconciliation of Net Profit After Tax
Net profit after tax as per statement of Profit & Loss

Add: Savings on Interest expense on Optionally Converted Preference Shares(Net of taxes)
Net Profit After Tax attributable to Equity and Potential Equity Shareholders
Reconciliation of Weighted average Number of Shares

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS
Total Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares

Weighted Average number of Equity and Potential Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating

INR
In Lacs
Numbers

In Lacs
Numbers

In Lacs

MNumbers

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Restated™*

10 10

(354.96) {1,826.37)

40,00,000 26,06,089

(8.87) (70.08)

(354.96) (1,826.37)

40,00,000 26,06,089

(8.87) (70.08)

(354.96) (1,826.37)

{354.98) (1,826.37)

40,00,000 26,06,089

40,00,000 26,056,089

Note : Optionally Convertible Prefernce Shares that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future that have riot been included in the calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Shares

because they are antidilutive for the year ended March 31, 2024

There were na amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

* Please refer Note Mo, 37 regarding disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 8




Mankind Aaritech Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR Iacs unless othorwise stated

36 Ratlo analvsis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 s Change Remarks
Current Rato Current Aseets Current Labillties 1L.BB 164 10.15)
Debt- Equity Ratic [ Tatal Debt Shareholder's Enuity, 0,30 * 100% |Refer Mote 1
Dbt Service Coverage ratia Earnings for dabt service = Net Debt service = Interest & Laase Payments 141 72.73 0.99
profit after taxes + Neon-cash + Principal Repayments
oparating &xpenses
Raturm on Eguity ratio Met Profits after taxes — Averagg s Equity {0.07) [1.15) 0.93
Dividend
Invertory Turnover ratio . st of aoods sold Average [nventary 126 0.47 (5941
Trade Recelvable Tumover Ratio Mot credit sales = Gross cradit sales <|Avarage Trade Receivable 483 126 (2:83)
sales retutn
Trade Payable Tumower Ratic Net credit perchases = Gross credit Trade Payables &:20 136 {3.58)
pufch@ses - purchase return
Met Capital Turnover Ratio teet salos = Total weles - sales ratumn | Working capital = CUrTent assats - 2.98 0.72 [2.77)
Current liabdfies
et Brofic ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales return {1.8%) (151.4%) 08.8% |Refer Note 2
Return on Capitel Employed Earnings before interest and taxes  [Capltsl Employed = Tzngile Net Worth + [4.3%) (114.2%) 95.2% |Refer Note 3
Torsl Debt 4+ Deferred Tax liabality

Notes :
Reasan for change more than 25%

1. The movement in current yéar is on sccount of increase in current on account of I t of cash credit facility frem bank,

2. The movement in current yaar is on account of decreass in net loss after taxes and increase in net sakes.

3. The movement in current year is on sccount of decreass in nat loss before interest & taxes and mcrease in capital employed on account of proceeds from msue of optionally convertible nen cumulative redeemable preferance shares.

37 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8 "Accounting polices, changes In accounting estimates and emors” (specified under section 133 af the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies [Accounts) Aules, 2015) are ‘gven below:
Following are the restatements made in the current year financial statements in previeus year,
| Particulars March 31, 2023 ] March 31, 2023 HNature
(Reported) {Restated)
Linbilities
Equity Share Capital 400.00| 3,450.00 |Reclassification items
malneﬂ Eamings (1.B73.40) {1,E64.15) | Reclassification items
g iy Cumgunﬂ'n of OE!mng @ vertible Praference Shases 2,725.17 = cation items
i nveitible Freferance Shares - cipal Amaunt 324,83 = R iflcation items
L|abi|tg C,umgugnm nl thmal Convertible Prefarance Shares - Interast Amount 9.35 - Reclassification items.
[nterast expense on 9.25 -
PrefitiiLoss) before taces (1.843.01] (1,534, 56]
Profit/{Loss) after taxes {1,835.62} (1,826.37}
Total comprehensive income foss for the vear [1,840.62) (1.831.37)
Earnings per Share (B / Diluted) _{70.44) (70.08)
Notes
The above restatements in prevluuu year have been made whersver pecessary to reflect the miror accounting adegted by the holding company in respect of el shares in with the of
Ind AS-32 "Financial . Thesa does not have any material impact.
38

The Corrmany has used accoimting softwars for maintalning s bocks of account which has a teature of recording sudit tiail (2ot log) facility and the same hax operatod througheut the year for all relevant transacticas recarded in the softwara, except that audit trail

feature b3 not enabled for direct ehanges Lo data (or were with certain privileged access rights and also for ceriain changes made wing

mutiniained By a third party service provider, in stsence of service condrels report,

aceess ight Further, in respect of softwate used |0 mainiaining payroll records which oparatad and
1 i wnable 1o determine whether audit trail leature of the underlying database was snabled and operated threughout the yeas. Further no Instance of audit

trail fe ature being Lampered with was noted in réspect of accounting softwara sxcapt that in absence of service arganisstion cantrols repart, we are unable to assess the same in respect af the softwane used to maintain payroll records.

39 Other Information

(i} The Company does nat have any charges or satisfaction which 1 y=t 1o be registersd with ROC beyond the statutory year.

[il} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency of Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iii} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any sther persan(s} or entity[Fs], Inciuding foreign entities (]

ies) with the

g that the

{a)Hiractly or indirecthy fend or invest in other persons or entitias Fdenti in any mannar what: by or an behalf of the company {Ultimats Beneficianas) or

[B)}fiFovide any guarantes, security or the like to or on bahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarias:

¥ shall:

{lv) The Company have not recelved any fund from any personis) or entity{ies], including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwisa) that the Company shall:
[a} directly or indirectly land or Invest in other persans or entlties in any manner by ar on behalf of the Funding Party [Ultimate Bensficiariesyor

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the Bke oo benalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(v} The Company does not have any transaction which i not recordad in the books of sccounts that has been subsequantly surrendered or dlsclosed as income 2uring the year as part of the on golng tax assessments undar the Income

Tax Act, 1951 (such as, search or survey or any cther relevant provisions of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961},

[vi) The Company donot have any Benemi proparty, where any procesding has been inftizted or pending against the Company for holding any Benami propearty.

{wil) The Company has not been declared as withul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemmant authority,

(wiii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescriced under the Companigs Act, 2013,

40 The figures have been rounded oft to the nearest lacs of rupees upte twe decimal places. The figurs 0,00 wherever stated represents walus kess than INF 500/~
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